ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 22, 2005
2:34 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Gary W/l ken, Vice Chair
Senator Kim El ton

Senat or Donny O son

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Lyda G een

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS:

University of Al aska Board of Regents - Robert Martin

Board of Marital & Famly Therapy - Kerry Rassnussen, Martha
Swank

Board of Nursing - Terri O son
The Professional Practices Conm ssion - Karen Macklin

Board of Education and Early Chil dhood Devel opnent - Esther Cox,
Shirl ey Hol | oway

Board of Psychologists and Psychol ogi cal Associate Exam ners -
Destiny Sargent

Board of Dental Exam ners - WIIliam Gerace
W TNESS REGQ STER

KERRY RASSMUSSEN

Box 1122

Ward Cove, Al aska 99928

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirmati on candi dat e.

ESTHER COX

7705 Hi ghl ander Dr.
Anchor age, Al aska 99518

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- April 22, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirnmati on candi dat e.

ROBERT MARTI N

9354 Ri vercourt \Way

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirmati on candi dat e.

MARTHA SWANK

1727 West 5th

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirmati on candi dat e.

TERRI OLSON

4256 Birch Run Drive

Anchor age, AK 99507

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirmati on candi dat e.

KAREN MACKLI N
Sitka, Al aska 99835
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirnmati on candi dat e.

SHI RLEY HOLLOWAY, Commi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment
801 West 10th Street, Suite 200

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1894

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirmati on candi dat e.

DESTI NY SARGENT

Box 34881

Juneau, Al aska 99803

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirmati on candi dat e.

W LLI AM GERACE

1600 E Tudor Road.

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Confirmati on candi dat e.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 2:34:57 PM
Present were Senators Kim Elton, Donny O son, Gary WIken and
Chair Fred Dyson

CHAI R DYSON announced the confirmation hearings woul d be heard.

2:38: 02 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 22, 2005



CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG BOARD OF MARI TAL & FAM LY THERAPY

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. RASSMUSSEN t he reason she desires to serve
on the Board of Martial and Fam |y Therapy.

KERRY RASSMUSSEN said she aspires to make changes such as
requiring background checks for people in the field. She has
lived in Ketchikan since 1967 and wants to help the comunity.

SENATOR COLSON said, "Looking at your resume, it seens that you
have not had a |lot of training in this field. How do you expect
to add to your qualifications?"

MS5. RASSMUSSEN responded she has been married for 37 years and
believes that is a sufficient qualification.

2:41:11 PM

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG BOARD OF EDUCATI ON AND EARLY CHI LDHOGOD
DEVELOPNVENT

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Cox the reason she wants to serve on the
Board of Education and Early Devel opnent.

ESTHER COX replied she has served on the board for tw years and
this woul d be a reappoi ntnent.

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Cox the nost inportant issue facing the
education conmunity.

M5. COX replied providing a quality education was the biggest
chal l enge facing the conmunity.

CHAI R DYSON asked her to give her opinion of groups trying to
provi de educational alternatives such as charter schools and
di stance educati on.

M5. COX responded she is fully in favor of providing educationa
alternatives to children so long as they are financially viable.

SENATOR W LKEN said he was disappointed in the Board for asking
for funding for boarding schools without a long-term plan for
managenent. He expressed hopes that the board would plan ahead
in the future, especially wth regards to boarding school
policies. He asked Ms. Cox how she feels about the state's
current fundi ng of boarding schools.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- April 22, 2005



M5. COX responded she is interested in the well being of existing
boardi ng schools such as Edgecunbe. She |ooks at the boarding
schools from the perspective of academc performnce, and
t eacher retention and from that perspective they are
institutions that should be supported.

SENATOR W LKEN said there has been ongoing discussion about the
possibility of the state providing cash incentives for
i nprovenents in academic performance on a school-by-schoo
basis. He asked Ms. Cox what she felt about that possibility.

2.48: 04 PM
M5. COX responded it is a concept that should be pursued.

SENATOR WLKEN said he would be willing to release the purse
strings to help inprove individual and school perfornmance.

2:48: 57 PM

CHAIR DYSON said he is disappointed in the net results of the
regul ations on distance schools and the present situation in
which sonme parents buy materials that are academcally
acceptable. They are censored because they have religious
content. He asked the wtness what she felt about the
regul ati ons.

M5. COX responded she believes that parents should be allowed
greater discretion in choosing their children's curriculum but
she is highly cognizant of how such allowances m ght affect
fundi ng for education.

CHAI R DYSON asked whether she felt that nmathematicians 1ike
Pyt hagoras, who viewed the world as representing sonme Kkind of
desi gn, should be excluded fromthe curricul um

M5. COX responded when the Ofice of the Attorney General says
that something is unconstitutional she has a responsibility as a
board nmenber to accept its assertion as a truism

CHAI R DYSON sai d:
That is absolutely inadequate and you should have the

courage to stand up to the opinion of the Ofice of
the Attorney Ceneral.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- April 22, 2005



M5. COX sai d:

You seem to say that | should challenge the Attorney
Ceneral and that is a very real possibility. | suppose
that I would have to know a lot nore than | now know

in order to do that.
CHAI R DYSON said the opinion of the Attorney General is just an
opi nion and he encourages board nenbers to question and perhaps
act agai nst that opinion.

SENATOR ELTON conplenented the wtness on her caution wth
respect to her consideration of funding for education.

2:55:41 PM

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA BOARD OF RECENTS

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Martin the reason he wants to serve on the
Board of Regents for the University of Al aska.

ROBERT MARTIN responded as an alumus of the University of
Al aska (UA) system he has a vested interest in its wellbeing. He
said that as he was growing up he looked up to famly nenbers
who had graduated from college. Few native children have the
opportunity to look to educated people as role nodels and he
want ed to change that.

CHAI R DYSON appl auded M. Martin's renmarKks.

SENATOR W LLKEN t hanked the witness for his service.

SENATOR ELTON said he has known M. Martin for a long tinme and
that the length and excellence of his service to the state is
remar kabl e and hi ghly commendabl e.

3:01: 56 PM

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG  BOARD OF MARI TAL AND FAM LY THERAPY

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Swank the reason she desires to serve on
the Board of Marital and Fam |y Therapy.

MARTHA SWANK r esponded she has been nmarried for 47 years and has

two children who are both married. Marriage and fam |y have been
a very inportant part of her life.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 22, 2005



CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Swank what she thought about conbining two
or three of the supervisory boards.

M5. SWANK responded she is in favor of conbining sonme of the
supervi sory boards.

3:04: 28 PM

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG BOARD OF NURSI NG

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. d son the reason she desires to serve on
t he Board of Nursing.

TERRI OLSON said as a registered nurse who is licensed by the
Board of MNursing, she shares its mssion of safety and
excel | ence.

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. O son what she thinks about the state's
decision to give nurses prescription authority.

M5. COLSON replied she thinks that it is wonderful, because it
brings nedical services into rural areas that would not
ot herwi se have them

SENATOR OLSON asked Ms. O son why she included her Colorado
| i cense on her resune.

M5. OLSON responded that was her first l|icense and she only
maintains it on her resune for sentinental reasons.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG PROFESSI ONAL TEACHI NG PRACTI CES
COW SSI ON

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Macklin the reason she desires to serve on
t he Professional Teaching Practices Conm ssion.

KAREN MACKLI N said her colleagues nom nated her to the current
position. It is inportant for a teacher to be on the comm ssion
and she feels particularly pleased to represent a rura
prospective on it.

CHAIR DYSON said he feels the Sitka School District has an
enlightened view of education and he applauds any part that Ms.
Mackl in has taken in the operation of the district.

3:10:17 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 22, 2005



CHAI R DYSON asked whether the state has nade any progress in the
last few years in meking life easier for special education
t eachers.

M5. MACKLIN replied due to the unfunded mandate of the No Child
Left Behind Act and the high stakes exit exans, the schools have
not been able to make significant progress in making things
easier for special education teachers. Mny of the new speci al
education prograns are difficult to inplenment since the schoo
districts have difficulty providing tine to train teachers for
t he prograns.

3:12:45 PM

CONFI RVATI ON. HEARING. BOARD OF EDUCATION AND EARLY CH LD
DEVELOPNVENT

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Holloway the reason she desires to serve
on the Board of Education and Early Child Devel opnent.

SHI RLEY HOLLOWAY said she wants to give sonethi ng back

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Holl oway how she feels about the Board's
funding of boarding schools and its prohibition of the state’s
rei mbursenent for religious correspondence prograns.

M5. HOLLOWAY answered boarding schools should be carefully
evaluated with regards to the relationship between funding and
academc performance. The Board needs guidance from the
Legislature in developing the state's boarding school policy.
She supports performance incentives, but believes the Board
should establish a growh nodel for all children, not just the
children who neet the bar.

Wth respect to Chair Dyson's earlier question about religious
correspondence prograns, it seens that the chairman has
information she has not seen. She was not aware of the audit or
of the opinion that the Attorney General sent to the state
board. She said correspondence is a wonderful concept and she
t hor oughly supports it.

3:18:42 PM

CONFI RVATI ON. HEARI NG BOARD COF PSYCHOLOG STS AND PSYCHOLOG CAL
EXAM NERS

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- April 22, 2005



CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Sargent the reason she desires to serve on
the Board of Psychol ogists and Psychol ogi cal Associ at e
Exam ners.

DESTI NY SARGENT said she wants to serve because she |oves her
job and wants to contribute at the board |evel.

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Sargent whether she senses problens within
the field that need addressed.

M5. SARGENT said she does not know of any particular concern
except that it is inportant to protect the integrity of the
prof ession and the safety of its cliental.

3:21:47 PM

SENATOR ELTON said the witness is not only a professional who
has provided services to people in desperate situations, but she
is also an exceptionally kind person and he wholly supports her
confirmation.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG  BOARD OF DENTAL EXAM NERS

CHAI R DYSON asked the M. Gerace the reason he desires to serve
on the Board of Dental Exam ners.

W LLI AM GERACE said he is very happy with his experience serving
on the board. He has commtted his adult life to excellence in
dentistry and considers it his duty to |ook out for the dental
health of the state.

3:23:59 PM

CHAIR DYSON said he has seen anecdotal evidence that an
egregi ous nunber of children in Al aska are devel oping serious
dental problens as a result of poor hygi ene and diet.

MR. CGERACE responded he would like to see nore efforts directed
to addressing the serious dental problenms that exist in rural
conmuni ties.

CHAI R DYSON thanked the candidates for answering the questions
of the commttee. There being no further business to cone before
the conmttee, he adjourned the neeting at 3:32: 00 PM

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 22, 2005



